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1. Nature of Motion.  Pursuant to R.C.M. 905 (b)(3), the defense moves the court to suppress SAILOR’s involuntary statements dated 1 April 2010.  The Defense requests the suppression of both oral and written statements, as well as any derivative evidence, including bank and telephone records, obtained as a result of the involuntary statements made to NCIS agents on 1 April 2010.  The statements were involuntarily obtained in violation of the 5th Amendment to the United States Constitution and in violation of Article 31, Uniform Code of Military Justice.

2. Summary of Facts.  On Thursday, 1 April 2010, Hospital Corpsman Chief Petty Officer, SAILOR, while onboard Naval Operational, told by his executive officer LCDR, that two NCIS agents wanted to meet with him.  He met with the two special agents in a room across from his office.  The agents first told HMC they were conducting an investigation.  They asked HMC how he knew FEMALE.  HMC was the CACO officer, helping ET3’s family through their bereavement.  Ms. was the deceased’s wife.  In answering them, HMC told the agents his whole involvement with Ms., to include attempts by him to recover nearly $14,000.00 that he viewed as overpayment to her by the government.  The NCIS agents never informed HMC of his Article 31 (b) rights.   

After relaying his involvement, the NCIS agents said, “You seem bright before we tell you our side of what happened you need to sign this document.”  They gave HMC a pile of documents, which included permission to access his bank account and cell phone and questionnaires inquiring into whether he had a drug, alcohol, or gambling problem.  Within these documents was the rights advisement form.  (Attachment 1).  HMC signed the rights advisement and initialed each right.  The top portion of the rights advisement, which should have included what wrongdoing he was suspected of, was not completed when he signed and initialed the document.  

After HMC signed the papers, the NCIS agents told him what Ms. alleged regarding the payment of the $14,000.00.  The agents then said, “You seem like an honest guy what were you going to do with the money?”  HMC responded that he believed the $14,000 was an overpayment.  He requested it from Ms. because he did not want to injure her chances of receiving her U.S. citizenship.  The agents continued to question him, asking if he requested the $14,000 with the intention to give it to Ms. in-laws.  Under significant stress and wanting the interview to end, HMC conceded the agents’ allegation.  The agents then instructed HMC to write down what he had just conceded in a written statement.  HMC did not then or now agree with the statement, but articulated it so that the investigation could end.  HMC wrote his statement on the form without knowing that he was suspected of a crime, much less extortion.  


Four months later, HMC met with Lieutenant of the Navy JAG Corp in.  Lt. wanted to meet with HMC to show him his file.  At this meeting, HMC saw his rights advisement form.  At this point, the top of the document was completed, in different handwriting, stating that he was suspected of extortion.  
3.  Discussion.  The Defense requests that this Court suppress HMC’s oral and written statements from 1 April 2010 and any derivative evidence.  As discussed below, HMC was never properly advised of his Article 31 rights before the investigation began.  Additionally, HMC was never properly advised that he was a suspect or a suspect of extortion even after he signed the rights advisement form.
The Failure to Provide Proper Rights Advisements



Firstly, the United States Constitution and Article 31 (b) of the UCMJ require rights advisements before interrogations or requests for statements.  The Court of Appeals for the Armed Forces (C.A.A.F.) has repeatedly recognized that rights advisements have a particular significance in the military because the effect of “superior rank or official position upon one subject to military law, [is such that] the mere asking of a question under [certain] circumstances is the equivalent of a command.”  United States v. Harvey, 37 M.J. 143 (C.M.A. 1993).  Where an earlier statement was involuntary because the accused was not properly warned of his Article 31 (b) rights, the voluntariness of the second statement is determined by the totality of the circumstances.  United States v. Brisbane, 63 M.J. 106, 114 (C.A.A.F. 2006).  Further, Congress has enacted the exclusionary provision of Article 31 (d) as a strict enforcement mechanism to protect a service member’s Article 31 (b) rights.  United States v. Swift, 53 M.J. 439, 448 (C.A.A.F. 2000). 



Under Article 31(b) “No person . . . may interrogate, or request any statement from, an accused or a person suspected of an offense without first informing him of the nature of the accusation . . . . “  Rule 305(c) of the Military Rules of Evidence, further clarifies, “A person subject to the code who is required to give warnings under Article 31 may not interrogate or request any statement from an accused or a person suspected of an offense without first: (1) [i]nforming the accused or suspect of the nature of the accusation . . . .”  The case law reiterates, “The accused must be made aware, however, of the general nature of the allegation.  The warning must include the area of suspicion and sufficiently orient the accused toward the circumstances surrounding the event.”  United States v. Huelsman, 27 M.J. 511, 513 (A.C.M.R. 1988) (citing United States v. Schultz, 19 U.S.C.M.A. 31, 41 C.M.R. 31 (C.M.A. 1970); United States v. Reynolds, 16 U.S.C.M.A. 403, 37 C.M.R. 23 (C.M.A. 1966)).  See also United States v. Pipkin, 58 M.J. 358, 360 (C.A.A.F. 2003) (quoting United States v. Simpson, 54 M.J. 281, 284 (C.A.A.F. 2000)) (holding that the suspect has a right to know the general nature of the allegation). 
 In Huelsman, the court held the individual’s statements made in regards to possession and distribution of marijuana was inadmissible because even though he was advised of his rights in regards to the larceny charge, he was not informed that he was suspected of possession and distribution.  United States v. Redd, 67 M.J. 581, 588 (A.C.C.A. 2008) (citing Huelsman, 27 M.J. at 513).  If the nature of the charge is not explicit, confessions are voluntary if the individual has constructive notice of the charge. That is not the case here. United States v. Annis, 5 M.J. 351, 352-53 (C.M.A. 1978).  In Reynolds the airman’s statements were involuntary because although he knew he was suspected of wrongful leave, he was not aware of the wrongful appropriation charge.  United States v. Piazza, No. 200301263, 2005 CCA LEXIS 370, at *7 (N-M.C.C.A. Nov. 22, 2005) (citing United States v. Reynolds, 16 C.M.A. 403, 405 (C.M.A. 1966)).  

The 1 April 2010 Oral Statement


On 1 April 2010, HMC’s Article 31 rights were violated when the NCIS agents failed to provide him with the proper rights advisement before compelling HMC to give an oral statement regarding his involvement with Ms.  The NCIS agents began investigating HMC without informing him of his Article 31 rights.  For purposes of this issue, the fact that the NCIS agents did not advise HMC of his rights before intentionally eliciting a statement from HMC makes the 1 April 2010 verbal statement inadmissible.  


The 1 April 2010 Written Statement 


Before telling their side of the story, the NCIS agents had HMC initial and sign his rights advisement form.  Never did the NCIS agents orally explain his rights, rather they handed him his advisement within a pile of other documents.  When HMC signed his rights advisement form, the top portion was not completed and nowhere in the document did it state that he was suspected of extortion, or any other crime.  The NCIS agents told HMC that the investigation would be closed in two weeks.  Additionally, they said they would submit the report to his commanding officer who would decide any further action.  Never did the NCIS agents inform HMC that he was a suspect or that he was suspected of extortion as required by Rule 31 (b), Rule 305 of the Military Rules of Evidence, or the case law.  


Additionally, HMC = did not have constructive knowledge of the charge because he did not know he was suspect, nor did he believe that he had acted illegally.  He believed the $14,000 was an overpayment.  The NCIS agents led HMC to believe if he cooperated, this case would be closed in two weeks.  HMC 1 April 2010 Rights Advisement should not be admitted because he was not informed that he was a suspect or that he was suspected of extortion.  Further, under the case law, the failure to advise HMC of the attempted larceny for which he was also charged makes the statements, both oral and written, illegally obtained.
1. Conclusion


Article 31 (d) is clear that no statement obtained from any person in violation of that article may be received into evidence against him in a trial by court-martial.  Not a single verbal or written statement that HMC provided is admissible because of the failures to provide a proper rights advisement.  The NCIS agents led HMC to believe that he was not a suspect.  The NCIS agents acted deliberately and deceptively when they completed the top portion of the rights advisement only after HMC signed the document and made his statement.  
4.  Evidence and Burden of Proof.    Under Mil. R. Evid. 304 (e), the burden is on the Government to establish the admissibility of the evidence.  The Military Judge must then find by a preponderance of the evidence that the statements made by HMC were made in compliance with the 5th Amendment and Article 31, UCMJ.

The following documents are presented in support of the facts alleged in the motion:


-Attachment 1: 1 April 2010 Rights Advisement and Written Statement
5.  Relief Requested.   The Defense requests that this Court suppress all of HMC’s oral and written statements and any derivative evidence obtained as a result of those statements.  
6.  Argument.  The Defense respectfully requests oral arguments.

Civilian Defense Counsel
******************************************************************************
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